
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

South Thames Gateway 
Building Control Joint 

Committee

Members of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee of Gravesham 
Borough Council are summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Usually held at the Civic 
Centre in Gravesend on Thursday, 22 September 2016 at 10.00 am when the business specified 
in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

5. Progress report on preparation of business case for setting up STG 
consultancy as a LATC 

(Pages 7 - 10)

6. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the 
Chairman is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.

Public Document Pack



7. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
 

Part B
Items likely to be considered in Private

8. STG Business Plan 2017-2020 (Pages 11 - 52)

9. Monitoring report April to July 2016 (Pages 53 - 66)

Members

Councillors: John Cubitt (Chair)
Jane Chitty
Gerald Lewin

Substitutes: Robin Theobald
David Carr
Bryan Mulhern



1

South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 

Thursday, 09 June 2016 10:00am 

Present:

Cllrs: Jane Chitty (Acting Chair)
Bryan Mulhern (Sub)
Robin Theobald (Sub)  

Andrew Barnett Financial Services, Gravesham Borough Council 
Janine Boughton Head of Administration and Business Development 
Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant, Gravesham Borough Council 
James Freeman Head of Planning Services, Swale Borough Council 
Sarah Kilkie Assistant Director Communities, Gravesham Borough Council 
Andrew Lawson Finance Business Partner, Medway Council 
Vicky Nutley Solicitor, Medway Council 
Tony Van Veghel Director, South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership 

1. Apologies for absence 

Apologies of absences were received from Cllr John Cubitt, Cllr Gerry Lewin, Stephen 
Gaimster and Mo Olatuja. 

2. Election of Temporary Chairman 

Due to Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Committee both sending apologies for the 
meeting it was proposed by Cllr Theobald and seconded by Cllr Mulhern that Cllr Jane Chitty 
chair the meeting.  

3. Election of Chairman 

Cllr Theobald proposed and Cllr Mulhern seconded that Cllr John Cubitt act as Chair of the 
Committee for the next municipal year. 

Resolved that Cllr John Cubitt would act as Chairman of the Committee for the next 
municipal year. 

4. Election of Vice-Chairman 

Cllr Theobald proposed and Cllr Mulhern seconded that Cllr Jane Chitty act as Vice-
Chairman of the Committee for the next municipal year. 

Resolved that Cllr Jane Chitty would act as Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the next 
Municipal year.

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 9.06.2016

2

5. Record of Meeting 

The record of the meeting held on 17 March 2016 was agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 

6. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made. 

7. Urgent Matters by Reason of Special Circumstances 

The Chairman agreed to the inclusion of the financial item, Final Outturn and Statement of 
Accounts 2015/16 due to the necessity of the item. 

8. Annual Report 

The Director of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership introduced the 
report which informed Members of the performance and financial information for the year 
2015/16. 

The Director of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership highlighted an 
overall 25% increase in the number of building applications as compared to 2014. He also 
advised that performance has improved throughout the year exceeding the percentage 
targets for the last nine months.  

The Director answered Members questions on the report. 

Members were very pleased with the positive performance and asked that their thanks be 
given to the team. 

Resolved that:

(1) The report be noted. 

9. Business Plan 

The Director of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership introduced the 
Business Plan to the Committee which outlines how the building control function will be 
delivered across the three partner Councils up until 2019. He highlighted that that the 
reduction of partner contributions over the three year period of the plan. He explained that 
the plan has been approved as a final draft at all three of the partner Cabinets and now 
comes to the partnership AGM to be formally adopted.  

The Director answered Member’s questions on the report. 

Resolved that:

(1) The Joint Committee adopted the 2016-19 Business Plan  dated 18 December 
2015 version 4 as well as the Service Delivery Documentation  

Page 4



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 9.06.2016

3

10. Progress on the Business Case 

The Director of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership gave a report to the 
Committee which updated Members on the progress of the business case for 
commercialisation of the Consultancy and the options available. 

The Director highlighted the main points in the report. 

Member’s acknowledged that progress is slow but methodical and carefully considered and 
spoke out in support of the recommendation for the continuation of the work to establish the 
Local Authority Company. 

Resolved that: 

(1) The report be noted 
(2) Members agreed to the continuation of the work necessary to establish a Local 

Authority trading Company (LATC) 

11. Administrative Arrangements 2016-17 

The Committee received a report that set out the administrative arrangements for the 2016-
17 municipal year. 

The Assistant Director Communities advised the Committee that Cllr John Cubitt had 
requested that the start time of the meeting on 22 September 2016 be moved from the 
morning to the afternoon. 

The Assistant Director Communities also clarified that the blanks in the report for Proper 
officers was an oversight and the existing Proper officers should have been included with a 
view to continuing in those roles. 

As follows: 

 Monitoring Officer – Mike Hayley (Gravesham Borough Council) 
 Deputy Monitoring Officer – Mark Radford (Swale Borough Council) 

 S151 Officer – Phil Watts (Medway Council) 
 Deputy S151 Officer – Nick Vickers (Swale Borough Council) 

Resolved that:

(1) The timetable of meetings for 2016-17 municipal year (as set out in paragraph 
3.2 and 3.3) be agreed 

(2) The appointment of officers listed in paragraph 4.2 as Proper Officers be noted 
(3) A secretary selected by Gravesham Borough Council be provided for the 

Committee for the 2016-17 municipal year 
(4) The time of the meeting of 22 September 2016 be rescheduled to the afternoon 

of the same day at 2:00pm 

Page 5



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 9.06.2016

4

12. Urgent Matters by Reason of Special Circumstances - Final Outturn 
Statement of Accounts to 2015-16 

The Director of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership gave his apologies 
to the Committee for the lateness of the item. 

The Director of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership presented to 
Members a report that addresses the requirement for the Committee to approve the draft 
Statement of Accounts for the 2015-16 financial year. According to the Memorandum of 
Agreement it requires the Statement of Accounts to be approved by the 30 June 2016. 

The Finance Business Partner, Medway Council advised that the 2015-16 balance being 
carried forward is £4246. 

On questioning, the Finance Business Partner, Medway Council clarified that in accordance 
with regulations, changing policy is such that ‘breakeven’ on changed reworks must be 
demonstrated over time. 

The Finance Business Partner, Medway Council advised that recommendation 6.1(c) did not 
need to be approved as signing of the statement by the Chair and monitoring officer is no 
longer required. 

Resolved that: 

(1) The outturn for 2015-16 and respective partner contributions as presented in 
section 2.2 of the report be noted 

(2) The Statement of Accounts as presented in Appendix 1 be approved 

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 10:29am. 

Page 6



SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL           
JOINT COMMITTEE

22 September 2016 

SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL
 REPORT ON PROSPECT FOR COMMERICALISATION OF 

THE CONSULTANCY

Report from: Tony Van Veghel, Director, South Thames Gateway Building 
Control Partnership

Summary

This report updates Members on the prospect for commercialisation of the 
consultancy following further investigation and effects in changes in 
legislation.

1.         Budget and Policy Framework

1.1 The Terms of Reference for Joint Committee require that Members make 
recommendations to each partner authority to provide resources as required 
to secure the delivery of the Business Plan and support its aims and 
objectives.

2.  Background

2.1. Following the update on the progression of the Outline Business Case for 
commercialisation of the consultancy at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
Members requested further investigation take place with regards to the 
viability of creating a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC).

3. Director’s comments

3.1. One of the objectives of the current business plan is the commercialisation of 
the consultancy and Members requested further investigation and evidence 
as to the viability of the project having previously examined a number of 
different delivery models. 

3.2. Current services that are provided by the consultancy fall into two categories.  
The first is around the provision of survey work for the housing sector mainly 
in respect of stock condition surveys and decent homes surveys whereby an 
assessment is made of work carried out under the capital works programme.  
The stock condition surveys provide information with regards to asset 
management and assist in the allocation of medium and long-term financial 
plan.  

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



3.3. The second category deals with energy assessments and uses a number of 
existing building control surveyors in the provision of SAPs, EPCs and energy 
Trade Off calculations which are primarily driven by building regulation 
applications.  

3.4. Following discussions with legal and finance colleagues it has been 
suggested that when carrying out the housing surveys for the partner 
authorities there is no advantage at present in operating differently to our 
current operation that is governed by the Localism Act, ie the service is 
provided at cost.  

3.5. Over the last 9 months there have been some significant changes in 
Government direction in respect of meeting the energy targets previously set 
under the Climate Change Act and following the review of the Housing 
Standards legislation at the end of 2015 it was decided that relevant parts of 
the Code for Sustainable Homes could be adequately dealt with through 
building and planning regulations.  To that end in Spring of this year the Code 
for Sustainable Homes was withdrawn and revised regulations with regards to 
thermal elements and calculations introduced into the building regulations.

3.6. Following the request by Members at the AGM we have been examining the 
impact of these changes and forecasting the potential income that could now 
be generated through this area of work.  As well as the abandonment of the 
code the Government also ended its project entitled “The Green Deal” which 
again was originally designed to foster and encourage homeowners to 
increase the thermal standards of their properties via various grant 
mechanisms both from Government and energy companies.  

3.7. More recently in July the Chancellor also outlined in his productivity plan 
“Fixing the Foundations” that the Government does not intend to proceed with 
the zero carbon allowable solutions carbon-offsetting scheme or the proposed 
2016 increase in onsite energy efficiency standards.  This has effectively 
brought to an end the prospect of achieving zero carbon dwellings by 2020. 

3.8. The changes in direction have to a large part been driven by the need to 
increase new housing stock and many of the difficulties that need to be 
addressed in the planning and construction phases of new sites throughout 
the industry.  Whilst the introduction of new regulations to compensate areas 
previously covered in the Climate Control Act have increased the workload 
within the building control element of the partnership it has had a negative 
approach on the current levels of energy assessments through the 
consultancy and the potential increases that were previously estimated.  

3.9. As Members will have noted from the previous Outline Business Case it was 
the intention to develop the energy assessment of the consultancy using 
specialist providers as this had been successfully implemented on the 
housing side.  Following both the actual and potential demand for this work 
there is no intention currently to take on such specialists we are, therefore, 
using the multiple skills of the existing surveyors who have previously been 
trained in this area to provide the energy assessments that are requested and 
to provide quotes for new work.

Page 8



3.10. In order to compete effectively with the approved inspectors it is important 
that we are still able to offer the services as they are still in demand albeit on 
a more limited basis.  Of course the costs of using professionally qualified 
building control surveyors to provide this service is more expensive than 
using specialist staff and again our provision is on an `at cost basis’.  

3.11. Whilst the changes in legislation and direction have affected our forecasts in 
the short-term the delivery of this service is still essential for us to remain in a 
competitive market.  There is also a continuing demand for local government 
to look at alternative delivery models to ensure they maintain value for money 
in providing excellent services.  There are also possibilities in providing other 
complementary services to the construction industry and we are examining 
the potential with regards to fire risk assessments, warranty provision and 
checking of planning conditions on site in the medium to long-term.

3.12. As has been noted from the commencement of the partnership there remains 
a opportunity for the consultancy to deliver any additional services at a profit 
through a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) and whilst these recent 
changes have affected our current forecasts the possibility of achieving that 
status still remains.  It is therefore recommended that we continue to research 
further services that could be provided in order to produce a viable 
commercial company, when a further report would be brought back to Joint 
Committee.

4. Financial Implications

4.1. There are none directly from this report.

5. Legal Implications

5.1. There are none directly from this report.

6. Risk Management

6.1. There are none directly from this report.

7. Recommendations

7.1. Members are asked to note the report and agree to ongoing monitoring and 
assessment of viability of the project given the development of existing 
services and expanding these in the future.

8. Suggested Reasons for Decisions

8.1. The Constitution requires the Joint Committee to monitor the progress of the 
Partnership.

Lead officer contact

Page 9



Tony Van Veghel, Director, South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership, 
Foord Annexe, Eastgate House, High Street, Rochester, ME1 1EW
Tel: 01634 331552
E-mail: tony.vanveghel@stgbc.org.uk 

Background Papers: None

Page 10

mailto:tony.vanveghel@stgbc.org.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 11 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Progress report on preparation of business case for setting up STG consultancy as a LATC
	8 STG Business Plan 2017-2020
	Business Plan 2017-20 - version 2
	Delivery Plan 2017-20 - version 1

	9 Monitoring report April to July 2016

